
CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2018 
 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Ana M. Ziade 
 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

 Mayor Ana M. Ziade 

 Vice Mayor Samson Borgelin 

 Commissioner Rich Moyle 

Commissioner Lorenzo Wood 

Commissioner Mario Bustamante 

 City Manager Ambreen Bhatty 

 City Attorney Samuel S. Goren 

 City Clerk Patricia Vancheri 

 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

a. November 13, 2018 

 

b. November 27, 2018 

 

 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

 

 

5. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 

 

  



6. QUASI-JUDICIAL ITEMS 
 

a. ORDINANCE – Second Reading - VAR- 18-01 Aldi Florida, LLC 
1190 S State Rd 7 

 

Requesting a 5.5 foot side setback whereas a 10 foot side setback is required per 

Section 106-442 (4) of the City of North Lauderdale business district land 

development regulation code within a general business (B-3) zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 

 All interested parties are sworn in by City Attorney 

 Motion and second and vote to read title  

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public comments 

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission motion and second to pass the ordinance on second reading 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, APPROVING 

AND GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM THE NORTH LAUDERDALE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, SECTION 106-442 (4) REGARDING THE REQUIRED 10 FOOT SIDE 

SETBACK; PROVIDING FOR STIPULATIONS AND CONDITIONS; PROVIDING 

THAT PROVISIONS NOT VARIED BY THIS ORDINANCE REMAIN IN FULL FORCE 

AND EFFECT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 
b. SUBJECT:  Site Plan SPR 18-07   Aldi Grocery Store  

 

Final Site Plan approval to construct a grocery store in a General Business (B-3) 

zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 
 All interested parties wishing to speak on this item are sworn in 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public comments  

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission motion and vote 

 



MOTION: To approve the final site plan subject to the eleven (11) conditions set forth in 

staff memorandum. 

 

 
c. SUBJECT:   SEU 18-05 Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II  

North side of Bailey Road west of existing Star of David facility at 

7701 Bailey Road. (Original SEU 99-01 and SEU 04-13). 

 

Special Exception Use (SEU) Permit for Cemetery Use in a Community Facility 

(CF) Zoning District. 

 

APPLICANT: Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc.  

 

 All interested parties wishing to speak on this item are sworn in 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public comments  

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission motion and vote 

 
MOTION:  To approve the special exception use permit with a new number and subject to 

the seven (7) conditions set forth in staff memorandum. 

 

 

d. SUBJECT:   Site Plan SPR 18-06 (Amending original site plan 95-01) 
Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II  - 7801 Bailey Road 

 

Site plan amendment approval to build 5,000 square foot maintenance building 

in a Community Facilities (CF) zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc.  

 
 All interested parties wishing to speak on this item are sworn in 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public comments  

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission motion and vote 

 

MOTION:  To approve the final site plan amendment (18-06) to build a 5000 square foot 

maintenance building and access road at Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II- 7801 

Bailey Road located in a Community Facility (CF) zoning district subject to the six (6) 

conditions outlined in staff’s memorandum. 

 



e. SUBJECT:  SPR 18-03      Rock Island Villas  
7400 SW 10th Ct 

Folio #: 4941-02-02-0130 

 

Preliminary site plan approval to construct 14 attached units (3 

buildings) in a Residential Multi-Family Medium Density (RM-10) 

zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Ragnar Magnusson, Rock Island Partners, LLC. 

 

 All interested parties wishing to speak on this item are sworn in 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public comments  

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission motion and vote 

 
MOTION:  To approve the preliminary site plan subject to the thirteen (13) conditions 

outlined in staff memorandum with direction for administration and the applicant to 

continue work together to finalize the site plan. 

 

 
7. ORDINANCES SECOND READING 

 
a. Ordinance – Second Reading - Proposed Fee Schedule Revision (Appendix F) 

Sec. 3 Building Permit and Related Fees (1) General e. Registration Fees 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read the ordinance 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Public Hearing opened 

 Public discussion 

 Public Hearing closed 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX F, OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE CODE OF ORDINANCES, ENTITLED "FEES", BY AMENDING 

ARTICLE I, ENTITLED, "COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE", 

SECTION 3 ENTITLED “BUILDING PERMITS AND RELATED FEES” TO PROVIDE 

FOR THE ELIMINATION OF THE FEE FOR CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 

INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 



8. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

a. RESOLUTION - Microsoft Enterprise Software Product License Purchases 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (Mitch Williams) 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR 

THE PURCHASE OF MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE LICENSES FROM 

SOFTWARE HOUSE INTERNATIONAL AS LISTED IN SECTION ONE OF THIS 

RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $44,178.64 AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

b. RESOLUTION - Copier Lease with Acordis International Corp Technology and 

Solutions 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (Mitch Williams) 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 

AN ACCEPTABLE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE AND ACORDIS INTERNATIONAL CORP TECHNOLOGY & 

SOLUTIONS FOR THE LEASE OF (4) XEROX VERSALINK C7030; (2) XEROX 

ALTALINK C8055 AND (1) XEROX VERSALINK B8025 MULTIFUNCTION COPIERS 

AT AN ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $13,667.16 FOR THE LEASE AND MAINTENANCE 

OF EQUIPMENT; AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL STEPS 

NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

c. RESOLUTION – Renewal of Water Plant Operation and Utility Billing Services 

Agreement with US Water Services Corporation 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (Susan Nabors/George Krawczyk) 



 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

THE RENEWAL ADDENDUM TO THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE AND US WATER SERVICES CORPORATION, 

FOR WATER PLANT OPERATIONS AND UTILITY BILLING SERVICES FOR A 

FIVE YEAR PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2019; RESPECTIVELY, PROVIDING 

FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

d. RESOLUTION – Interlocal Agreement with Cities of Pompano Beach, Margate, 

North Lauderdale, Coral Springs, and Coconut Creek for 

sharing the Cost of the Development of Bacteria Pollution 

Control Plan 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (George Krawczyk) 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR HER 

DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT MADE AND 

ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, THE CITY OF 

MARGATE, THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, THE CITY OF CORAL 

SPRINGS, AND THE CITY OF COCONUT CREEK FOR THE SHARING OF THE 

COST OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF A BACTERIA POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN 

FOR THE C-14 CANAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

e. RESOLUTION - Resolution Supporting the Broward Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) W. Prospect Road Mobility 

Improvements Project to Enhance Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Connectivity Along County Right-of-Way 

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (Tammy Reed-Holguin) 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 



 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE METROPOLITAN PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION’S PROJECT TO ENHANCE BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 

CONNECTIVITY ALONG PROSPECT ROAD WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY, 

FROM SR-7/US-441 TO APPROXIMATELY NW 36th TERRACE; FURTHER 

EXPRESSING ITS INTENT TO TAKE OVER MAINTENANCE OF THESE 

BIKE/MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY. 

 

 

9. REPORTS 

 

a. Hazardous Waste Collection Events through the Co-Op (George Krawczyk) 

 

b. Update on FEMA Grants received under Hazard Mitigation Program (Tammy 

Reed-Holguin) 

 

 

10. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

a. RESOLUTION - Broward League of Cities Board of Directors Appointments  

 

 Motion, second and vote to read 

 Attorney reads title 

 Staff presentation (City Clerk) 

 Commission motion and second to adopt 

 Commission discussion 

 Commission vote 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION 

APPOINTING A DIRECTOR, AN ALTERNATE DIRECTOR AND A SECOND 

ALTERNATE TO THE BROWARD LEAGUE OF CITIES BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 2018 THROUGH MAY 2019 PROVIDING THAT A COPY 

OF THIS RESOLUTION BE SENT TO MARY LOU TIGHE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

OF THE BROWARD LEAGUE OF CITIES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

b. Discussion and possible Motion appointing a representative to the Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (MPO) Board 

 

c. Discussion and possible Motion regarding attendance at Florida League of Cities 

Institute for Newly Elected Officials – January 25-27, 2019 - Jacksonville 

 

  



 

11. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

a. Request and possible motion to approve rescheduling the first Commission 

Meeting in January from January 8
th

 to January 15
th

 

 

b. Upcoming Events 

 

 Friday, December 14 – 11:30 to 1:30 - Employee Luncheon – Teen Center 

 

 Saturday, December 15 - NAPA Auto Parts at 1375 S. State Road 7 grand 

opening  8 AM-6pm with ribbon cutting at 9:00 AM 

 

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 

 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2018 
 

 

MINUTES 

 
The North Lauderdale City Commission met on Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at the Municipal 

Complex. The meeting convened at 6:00 p.m. 

 

1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Acting Mayor Moyle gave the 

invocation and led the pledge. 

 

2. ROLL CALL – Clerk called roll. All present. 

 

 Acting Mayor Rich Moyle 

Commissioner Jerry Graziose 

Commissioner Lorenzo Wood 

Commissioner Samson Borgelin 

 City Manager Ambreen Bhatty 

 City Attorney Samuel S. Goren 

 City Clerk Patricia Vancheri 

 

Attorney Goren stated that Mayor Brady has formally retired as Mayor effective at 12 noon last 

Thursday.  He advised Mayor Brady is a retired citizen of the city and legally retired under Chapter 112 

of the Florida Statutes. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

a. October 09, 2018 

Commissioner Graziose moved to approve. Seconded by Commissioner Wood. All in favor. 

 

b. October 18, 2018 

Commissioner Graziose moved to approve. Seconded by Commissioner Wood. All in favor. 

 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

 

a. City of North Lauderdale - American Heart Association Workplace Health Solutions 

Award Recipient - (Robert Hill Jr., MPH, Community Impact Director)  

 

Lindsey Leblang, on behalf of the American Heart Association presented the City of North Lauderdale 

with the Bronze Award level recognition for the workplace health program which looks at seven health 

behaviors and factors that affect workplace health. Jennifer Yarmitzky, Human Resource Manager 

thanked the City Commission, City Manager, Department Heads and the Wellness Committee Members 

for their participation and all their support. 

 

5. PROCLAMATIONS – None. 



6. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 

 

Janet Lanni thanked Commissioner Graziose for all his years of service to the community. She described 

Commissioner Graziose as a man of integrity, kindness with ambition, honor and a friend to all. Ms. 

Lanni expressed that on behalf of herself and many citizens in the community that he would be missed 

as a Commissioner. 

 

James Dowling commented on meeting great people throughout his years as a resident in the city and 

referred specifically to the members of the City Commission. He congratulated the winners of the recent 

election. He expressed continued support for Mayor Brady and Commissioner Graziose as well as the 

newly elected officials. 

 
Attorney Goren advised that Vice Mayor Moyle is the acting Mayor as per the City Charter until the 

successors are sworn into office. He further advised that the certified results for the election will not be 

available until sometime after November 20, 2018. He briefly explained the recount process under 

Florida law. 

 
7. QUASI-JUDICIAL ITEMS 
 

a. ORDINANCE – First Reading - VAR- 18-01 Aldi Florida, LLC 
1190 S State Rd 7 

Requesting a 5.5 foot side setback whereas a 10 foot side setback is required per Section 

106-442 (4) of the City of North Lauderdale business district land development regulation 

code within a general business (B-3) zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 

Attorney read: 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND 

GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM THE NORTH LAUDERDALE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

SECTION 106-442 (4) REGARDING THE REQUIRED 10 FOOT SIDE SETBACK; PROVIDING 

FOR STIPULATIONS AND CONDITIONS; PROVIDING THAT PROVISIONS NOT VARIED 

BY THIS ORDINANCE REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; PROVIDING FOR 

CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Attorney Goren swore in any members of the public and the Applicant’s team that were present. He 

explained the quasi-judicial process. Tammy Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

presented information based on the back up memorandum for two items; the site plan and variance 

request. She described the business of operations for Aldi and the location as a current store prototype 

building.  She advised that Aldi plans to employ 15-25 people and they will make an effort to hire 

employees locally. She provided details on the store hours.  Ms. Reed- Holguin advised the proposed 

use of the parcel is consistent with the master building list and the site does meet the city parking 

requirements as per code. They are requesting a variance for a 5 1/2 foot setback where 10 feet is 

required. She explained that Aldi made a purchase of land from Palm Collision to accommodate the 

store on this piece of property.  She stated that even with the purchase of land the building is still not set 

back 10 feet from the property line. Ms. Holguin-Reed advised that Aldi moved the building a little 

more and now they only need a 4 1/2 foot variance. She explained part of Aldi’s justification is that they 

are building on what remains of a parcel of land after the Circle K was built. They are also providing 



access from the Circle K to the Aldi Grocery Store location because these two businesses are too close 

together for an access to be built from State Rd 7.  She referenced a letter of support from Palm 

Collision in which they are asking for a wall to be built by Aldi which Palm Collision has agreed to 

maintain.  Aldi is working on a traffic study to look at the impact of the trip generation from SW 12 ST 

to the South of their location.  Ms. Reed- Holguin referenced the renderings on the power point 

presentation which will be consistent with the color theme of the city. She explained that the Planning 

and Zoning Board did approve the variance request and that Staff added a 4
th

 condition to the 

recommendation to state the variance is tied to the Aldi application and future use of the building once 

constructed. Ms. Reed-Holguin stated they are recommending approval of the variance with the (4) 

conditions and the site plan order with the (11) conditions that are listed in the memorandum. Attorney 

Goren intervened to note that there is a corresponding preliminary site plan that was discussed in the 

testimony provided by Ms. Reed-Holguin, referencing item 7b. He stated that each of the items that are 

being considered under one public hearing will require a separate motion, for both VAR 18-01 and SPR 

18-07, which was discussed and proposed by Ms. Reed-Holguin during her presentation. Commissioner 

Wood moved to approve VAR 18-01 with the four (4) recommendations. Seconded by 

Commissioner Graziose.  Commissioner Borgelin expressed his appreciation for the project and that 

Aldi will be making an effort to hire locally which will benefit the city. Attorney Dickerson, with the 

law firm of Dunay, Miskel and Backman, LLP, on behalf of the Applicant, agreed to all the information 

presented by Staff. He stated for the record that they do voluntarily agree to all the conditions for both 

the VAR 18-01 and the SPR 18-07. He advised that job fairs are held in the local municipalities for the 

residents to take advantage of employment opportunities. There was no further discussion. Clerk called 

roll. All YES.  

 

ORDINANCE PASSED ON FIRST READING. 

 
b. SUBJECT:  Site Plan SPR 18-07Aldi Grocery Store  

 

Preliminary Site Plan approval to construct a grocery store in a General Business (B-3) 

zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 
MOTION: To approve the preliminary site plan subject to the eleven (11) conditions set forth in 

staff memorandum. 

 

This item was presented under 7a. 

 

Commissioner Wood moved to approve SPR 18-07 with the eleven (11) conditions. Seconded by 

Commissioner Graziose. Commissioner Borgelin inquired if people are required to bring their own 

bags. Attorney Dickerson advised that people have the option to bring their own bags or purchase bags 

at the Aldi grocery store. There was no further discussion. Clerk called roll. All YES. 

 

MOTION PASSED. 

 

8. ORDINANCES SECOND READING 

 
Commissioner Graziose moved to read. Seconded by Commissioner Wood.  

Attorney read: 

 



a. Ordinance – Second Reading - 2018 Fiscal Year End Budget Amendment   

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 17-09-1360 BY WHICH THE CITY COMMISSION 

DID ADOPT THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE FOR THE 2017/2018 

FISCAL YEAR, TO REVISE THE BUDGET AS DOCUMENTED IN “EXHIBIT A” 

ATTACHED; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND, PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Susan Nabors, Finance Director, presented the item based on the back up memorandum.  She advised 

there are a few items at the department level that need to be amended for Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 Budget. 

Ms. Nabors explained that in the Public Works department there were a lot of expenses related to 

Hurricane Irma which were unbudgeted. There was some unspent money in the Public Works 

department that will offset the unbudgeted hurricane costs and a net adjustment will only be needed in 

the amount of $950,000. The city did set aside some fund balance to cover disaster items which will be 

utilized to temporarily cover these expenses until reimbursement from FEMA is received to replenish 

those funds. In the Community Development department there are higher inspection expenses resulting 

from a higher permitting volume which created an over budget condition. She noted there is an uptake 

on permitting revenue for FY18 which reached over 1.2 million dollars which is the highest level ever 

seen by the city for permits. In the Water Control District fund there is a need to adjust the budget for 

extra funds to complete the canal cleanup project. The grant funds will account for 75% of the money 

requested but a $25,000 match will need to be covered by the Water Control District.  There was an 

unbudgeted arbitrage report which is required every five years in the Debt Service fund, which accounts 

for the principle and interest payments on the outstanding bonds. The report was done by a consultant to 

make sure the transactions are properly funding the debt service and that the use of the funds still meet 

the tax exempt status. Ms. Nabors stated that with these four budget amendments the FY18 Budget 

would be complete. No one spoke during Public Hearing. Commissioner Graziose moved to approve. 

Seconded by Commissioner Borgelin. Commissioner Borgelin questioned what attributed to the 

increase to the permit department.  Ms. Reed-Holguin responded that the increase is attributed to several 

factors such as new construction, hurricane repairs and the single rental home program inspections. 

There was no further discussion. Clerk called roll. All YES. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-11-1382  PASSED AND APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

a. ORDINANCE – First Reading – Proposed Fee Schedule Revision (Appendix F) 

Sec. 3 Building Permit and Related Fees (1) General e. Registration Fees 

 

Commissioner Wood moved to read. Seconded by Commissioner Graziose. 

Attorney read: 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX F, OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, ENTITLED "FEES", BY AMENDING ARTICLE I, ENTITLED, "COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE", SECTION ENTITLED “BUILDING AND RELATED 

FEES” TO PROVIDE FOR THE ELIMINATION OF THE FEE FOR CONTRACTOR 

REGISTRATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 



 

Tammy Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director presented the item based on the back up 

memorandum.  She explained per Florida State Statute the city can no longer charge a fee for contractors to 

register to do business in the city. The city will continue to require contractors to register, and to be licensed 

and insured but the city will no longer charge a fee.  No one spoke during Public Hearing. Commissioner 

Graziose moved to approve. Seconded by Commissioner Wood. Commissioner Wood inquired on how 

the statute will impact the department in ensuring contractors are licensed and insured to prevent against 

unscrupulous contractors.  Ms. Reed-Holguin advised they will continue to require contractor registration 

and to check for licensing and insurance but they will just no longer charge a fee for it. Mr. Dowling, a city 

resident commented on his experience with drywall work and his five year apprenticeship before he became 

a journeyman which accounted for his knowledge.  He questioned how the contractors will prove they are 

certified and experienced. Ms. Reed-Holguin advised the city will check for license, insurance and workers 

compensation but not for experience which would have to be checked by the homeowner. Commissioner 

Borgelin inquired on the estimated charges the city is absorbing by not charging the contractor registration 

fee.  Ms. Reed- Holguin responded that the amount is minimal.  She advised they are going to try to 

enhance the online process to enable contractors to register themselves which will lessen the impact on the 

Staff to process the contractor registration and that will also offset the loss of revenue.  Commissioner 

Wood clarified that this is a State Statute and the city will continue to check for licensing, insurance and 

workman compensation. City Manager Bhatty commented a contractor is still required to be licensed to 

work. No further discussion. Clerk called roll. All YES. 

 

ORDINANCE PASSED UNANIMOUSLY ON FIRST READING 

 

 

b. RESOLUTION - Agreement with Broward College to permit Paramedic and 

Emergency Medical Technician Students to Participate in 

Educational Programs with the North Lauderdale Fire Rescue 

Department 

 

 

Commissioner Graziose moved to read. Seconded by Commissioner Borgelin. 

Attorney read:  
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, 

FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH BROWARD COLLEGE, TO ALLOW EMT AND PARAMEDIC 

STUDENTS TO RIDE WITH THE NORTH LAUDERDALE FIRE RESCUE DEPARTMENT 

FOR EDUCATIONAL AND TRAINING PURPOSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

Fire Chief Turpel presented the item based on the back up memorandum. He advised this is the third 

time that he is presenting an agreement for Broward College students to participate in the ride-along 

program. He explained that Broward Community College has been riding with them for 18 years, and 

changed to Broward College, now operating as a University. Chief Turpel advised the agreement was 

reviewed several times with City Attorney Goren, City Manager Bhatty and Human Resource Manager 

Yarmitzky to best protect our city from liability.  He explained the reason they want Broward College to 

be part of the ride-along program is that they are the only state college that has paramedic and EMT 

students and all the other schools are private. Broward College also has degree programs for emergency 

medical science and 60% of all students attend the paramedic program. City Manager Bhatty 



commented this is a benefit to both the students and the school. The students receive practical 

experience and hands on training while they ride-along with experienced paramedics. The students 

attending Broward College are taught the latest technology and they bring that knowledge to the fire 

department staff. Commissioner Graziose moved to approve. Seconded by Commissioner Borgelin. 

Commissioner Borgelin inquired if pictures of the students with the paramedics can be presented at a 

future Commission meeting. Chief Turpel responded that can be done. There was no further discussion. 

Clerk called roll. All YES.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-11-6577 PASSED AND APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10. REPORTS 

 

a. Update on Complete Streets and Other Localized Initiatives Program (CSLIP) 

application to MPO for 81
st
 Avenue project (Tammy Reed-Holguin/George Krawczyk)  

 

Community Development Director, Tammy Reed-Holguin and Public Works Director George 

Krawczyk presented updated information on the CSLIP project. Ms. Reed-Holguin advised they hired 

Carnahan, Proctor and Cross to prepare technical drawings, to perform traffic counts for the round-

abouts that are being proposed and to prepare a cost estimate. She presented the cross sections from the 

engineering firm which includes pedestals for signalization, a multi-use pass for pedestrians and bike 

lanes. Mr. Krawczyk reviewed the proposed round-about concepts at the two locations with spacing 

designed to accommodate the traffic flow. Ms. Reed-Holguin advised that the estimate of the project 

came in under two million dollars and indicated that another requirement of the grant is to have public 

involvement.  She advised that 755 letters were sent by mail to residents within 300 radius of the project. 

There were 84 responses to the letters and they are still receiving responses from residents. The majority 

of the public were supportive of the project and most of the comments were due to concerns with 

increases in property taxes. She clarified this is a grant that has nothing to do with the city's general 

revenue or the property tax fund. Ms. Reed-Holguin advised the grant application requires the Applicant 

to have ownership of the right-away to apply for the grant. However, the city does not have ownership 

of the north or south end of the right of away which is still owned by Broward County. A resolution 

could be obtained from that entity certifying that they will dedicate it to the city or provide authorization 

to have it done in their right of way but there is not enough time to obtain the resolution to apply for the 

grant. They are working with the city attorney’s office for a title search to submit with the grant 

application. They are recommending keeping all the documentation they have gathered to submit a 

complete application at the next round of funding rather than submit an incomplete application at this 

time. Ms. Bhatty advised they conducted a lot of historical research on the ownership of the property.  

She stated she is glad they were able to catch this right now to submit a correct application in a complete 

format when the submittal cycle opens again rather than have the application rejected now. 

Commissioner Graziose inquired if the narrowing down the lanes to a single lane from each direction 

has changed. Mr. Krawczyk responded that yes, that has changed due to the traffic volume and two lanes 

are needed. Commissioner Graziose advised he would bring up the application at the MPO meeting 

tomorrow morning in case there is any other information.  Ms. Bhatty noted the deadline to submit the 

application is tomorrow. She also advised that Public Works Director, George Krawczyk, and 

Community Development Specialist, Andrew Disbury, would be attending the MPO meeting as well. 
 

 

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

Commissioner Wood spoke on the Alliance Membership that was approved at the last meeting. He 

requested consensus to have Assistant Community Development Director, Katherine Randall, and 



Community Development Director, Tammy Reed- Holguin as representatives for the city for this 

membership. Commissioner Wood also expressed interest in representing the city and attending the 

meetings. There was consensus by the City Commission to have Ms. Randall, Ms. Reed-Holguin and 

Commissioner Wood represent the city at the Alliance meetings. 

 

Commissioner Borgelin expressed thanks to the city for the work being done on Kimberly Blvd. He also 

thanked the city, Commissioners, and City Clerk Vancheri for making it possible to attend the National 

League of Cities Conference. He mentioned a Youth Summit representing the City of Miramar at the 

conference and commented that he would like to see the city get involved with the Summit. He 

reminded everyone of the upcoming Burnham Woods event as well as the Tamarac and North 

Lauderdale Chambers event. Commissioner Borgelin encouraged the newly elected officials to take 

advantage of the class being offered by the Institute for Elected Municipal Officials on January 25-27, 

2018 which will provide basic courses on effective council techniques and budget and accounting 

information. 

 

Vice Mayor Moyle expressed sadness at Mayor Brady’s absence at the Commission meeting. He wished 

Mayor Brady well on his retirement and extended many blessings to him and his family. He also 

expressed that Commissioner Graziose not being on the Commission going forward will leave a huge 

hole for all the work he has done during his time on the Commission and that he will be missed as well.  
 

 

12. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

a. Upcoming Events: 

 Saturday, November 17 - Business Give Back 11:30-3:30 PM at Hampton Pines Park  

City Manager Bhatty reminded everyone present of the upcoming Business Give Back event hosted by 

the North Lauderdale and Tamarac Chambers of Commerce. 

 

 Thursday, November 22 (Thanksgiving day)- 8:00 am in City Hall parking lot  

o Meal give-away-7 churches requested 697 meals 

o Assistance to load vehicles requested 

City Manager Bhatty advised that this event has been held for several years and the city works with the 

Brigade, a non-profit organization, to provide the meals. Commissioner Wood commented that there 

were several meals that were not picked up last year. He emphasized having a confirmed list of 

participating churches. Ms. Bhatty advised that the list of participants would be confirmed. She also 

mentioned that Commissioner Borgelin mentioned there is another church that is interested in 

participating with this program which the city will add to the list. 
 

 Saturday, November 24 – Winterfest – Field 4 Jack Brady Sports Complex 

Ms. Bhatty noted the time of the event is 5pm and referenced the event flyer with details. 
 

 Saturday, December 8 – CNL Holiday Parade and Tree Lighting  

Ms. Bhatty commented they are hoping for no rain. She advised the Grand Marshall for the parade will 

be Channel 10 news anchor, Calvin Hughes.  
 

 Saturday, December 8 – Tamarac North Lauderdale Chamber of Commerce Holiday 

Gala – 7-12 pm  



Ms. Bhatty noted that the Gala takes place directly after the City Parade and briefly mentioned to 

officials on the arrangements to attend both events. 

 

 Saturday, December 15 – Grand Opening - NAPA Auto Parts at 1375 S. State Road 7 - 8 am - 

6pm with ribbon cutting at 9:00 AM 

Ms. Bhatty advised the Commission and Staff have been invited to NAPA Auto Parts ribbon cutting. 
 

City Manager Bhatty was reminded by Commissioner Wood regarding the discount prescription card 

offered by the city through the National League of Cities membership. She described the savings in 

terms of cost offered with the program. Commissioner Wood explained the background on becoming a 

National League of Cities member after he received information on the membership while attending a 

Florida League of City’s Conference. He spoke on the advantages of the prescription discount card 

which is offered one per family household and also covers pets. He encouraged all the residents to pick 

up the prescription discount card. 

 

Commissioner Borgelin inquired if the city sports teams will be showcased at the city parade. Mike 

Sargis, Parks and Recreation Manager confirmed the city soccer teams will be participating in the 

parade. He advised the football program in the city, the Boys & Girls Club, and all the city schools have 

been invited to participate as well as 10 high school marching bands. Mr. Sargis stated he is waiting for 

a response from a few of the schools and that he will continue to contact them regarding their 

participation in the city parade. 
 

13. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 
 

Attorney Goren updated on the (11) approved Charter Amendments that were passed and adopted by a 

high percentage of the voters. He described the Charter Amendment item regarding the 48 hour rule 

which requires local governments that hold sunshine meetings to either post and publish their Agenda 

within 48 hours of the meeting unless there is an emergency that requires them to deliver it separately. 

Attorney Goren read the title of the resolution of the proposed amendment to the Charter of Broward 

County enacting a new Section 1.07, Posting of Notices, Agendas and Back up Materials. He noted that 

the city has always posted the Agenda well in advance of the City Commission meeting. He indicated he 

would be briefing the Commission on the other Charter items in the near future. 

 

Attorney Goren advised there is a League of Cities Boot Camp training for newly elected officials. He 

stated under the Broward County Ethics Code newly elected officials are required to have their ethic 

training hours within 120 days of their election. He explained that newly elected officials require 8 hours 

of ethics training per calendar year and that existing officials only require 4 per year. Attorney Goren 

provided information on the upcoming ethic training events scheduled for November 29, 2018 by the 

Inspector General, and the Broward League of Cities ethics training scheduled for November 30, 2018 

in which he would be a presenter and or moderator.  Attorney Goren noted as per the ethics code your 

city attorney needs to provide training.  
 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT – There being no further discussion the meeting adjourned at 7:24 pm. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Patricia Vancheri, City Clerk 

Transcribed by Deputy Clerk Elizabeth Garcia-Beckford 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2018 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

The North Lauderdale City Commission met at the Municipal Complex on Tuesday, November 27, 2018 

for a special meeting convening at 5:00 p.m. 

 

1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Borgelin gave the 

invocation and led the pledge of allegiance. 

 

2. ROLL CALL – Clerk called roll. All present. 

 

 Acting Mayor Rich Moyle 

 Commissioner Jerry Graziose 

Commissioner Lorenzo Wood 

Commissioner Samson Borgelin 

 City Manager Ambreen Bhatty 

 City Attorney Samuel S. Goren 

 City Clerk Patricia Vancheri 

 

 

3. ELECTION ITEMS 

 

a. Clerk read results of November 6, 2018 Election 

 

Candidates Total Votes Percent 

Ana M. Ziade, Mayor at Large 5,723 53.26% 

Lorenzo Wood, District “A” 1,266 44.81% 

Mario Bustamante, District “B” 1,130 50.49% 

   

 

Referendum Questions Total Votes Percent 
Time Frame for Appointing a Charter Review 

Commission 
5,753 55.45 

Removing Purchase Provisions from City Charter; 

Requiring City Commission to Adopt Procurement 

Code 

7,617 71.99 

   

  



b. RESOLUTION – Approving Election Results 

 

Commissioner Wood moved to read. Seconded by Commissioner Borgelin.  

Attorney read: 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE ACCURACY OF THE BROWARD 

COUNTY CANVASSING BOARD’S CANVASS OF THE ELECTION RESULTS OF THE 

NOVEMBER 6, 2018 GENERAL ELECTION; AND, PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Commissioner Borgelin moved to adopt. Seconded by Commissioner Wood. There was no Commission 

discussion. Clerk called roll: 

  Commissioner Borgelin - Yes 

  Commissioner Wood - Yes 

  Acting Vice Mayor - Yes 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-11-6578 PASSED AND APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

 

c. Oath of Office to Successful Candidates – Elected officials were duly sworn into office by 

City Clerk Vancheri and took their respective seats on the dais. 

 

i. Ana M. Ziade, Mayor at Large 

Mayor Ziade thanked her family, friends and everyone present. She stated it is a privilege to be on the 

Commission and expressed her appreciation for their support. At this point she introduced Tamarac 

Mayor Gomez, Tamarac Commissioner Fishman, Tamarac, Vice Mayor Marlon Bolton, and Lauderdale 

Lakes Mayor Hazelle Rogers who were present in the audience. 

 

ii. Lorenzo Wood, Commissioner District “A” 

Commissioner Wood thanked God and all those that supported him through this journey to be re-elected. 

He commented on his 28
th

 year as a city resident and stated that it is an honor to have been elected as the 

first African American to sit on the Commission for the City of North Lauderdale. He expressed that he 

will continue to do all in his power to move the city forward.  

 

iii. Mario Bustamante, Commissioner District “B” 

Commissioner Bustamante thanked everyone for their support. At this time a business colleague of 

Commissioner Bustamante said a few words commending him on being a hardworking and honest 

individual and he expressed congratulations and well wishes on his new role as a city official.   

 

d. Selection of Vice Mayor by City Commission  
Commissioner Borgelin nominated himself for Vice Mayor. The nomination was seconded by 

Commissioner Bustamante. Commissioner Moyle nominated Commissioner Wood for Vice Mayor. 

Commissioner Wood declined. Clerk called roll. All YES. Nomination for Commissioner Borgelin 

as Vice Mayor was approved.  

 

 



e. Oath of Office to Vice Mayor  
Commissioner Borgelin was duly sworn in by City Clerk Vancheri. Vice Mayor Borgelin thanked his 

wife, friends, and acknowledged veteran officials present and others for their support. He commented on 

learning a great deal since he was first elected as a Commissioner. He congratulated the elected officials 

and expressed wanting to work together with his colleagues to serve the city. He also conveyed 

appreciation to the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk and city staff for all their work. He then 

took his seat on the dais as Vice Mayor. 

 

Commissioner Wood recognized and introduced his family members that were present in the audience.  

He expressed heartfelt thanks to his family members for attending on his behalf. 

 

INTERMISSION 

 

Mayor Ziade called for a brief intermission at 5:26 pm. The meeting resumed at 5:41pm 

 

4. OTHER BUSINESS – None.  

 

5. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

Commissioner Wood thanked the coordinators of the Business Give Back event at Hampton Pines Park. 

He specifically thanked Peter Mason with the North Lauderdale/ Tamarac Chambers, Community 

Development Director Tammy Reed Holguin, Assistant Community Development Director Katherine 

Randall and all the city employees that took part in making the event happen. He commented that it is all 

about bringing our community together and that it was a great event. 

 

Commissioner Borgelin thanked everyone for making the effort to attend the meeting. He advised in 

addition to the Business Give Back event there was also the Burnham Woods event which took place on 

the same day and was well attended. He reminded everyone to participate at City Commission meetings 

that are held twice a month and emphasized that the resident’s opinions matter.  

 

Mayor Ziade thanked everyone for coming out to the meeting. She stated there is has been a lot of 

contention and she is hopeful they can move forward as a city as a whole. She commented they are all 

there for the betterment of the City of North Lauderdale and the residents. 

 

 

6. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

City Manager Bhatty noted that Mayor Ziade is the first female Mayor for the city. She noted that  

 

a. Upcoming Events 

 Saturday, December 8 – CNL Holiday Parade and Tree Lighting – 4:00 pm 

Mike Sargis, Parks and Recreation Manager provided the details of the plans for the parade and tree 

lighting, as well as the arrival times and seating arrangements for the City Commission. He indicated no 

candy is thrown from the cars for safety reasons. He advised that immediately following the parade will 

be the tree lighting ceremony. North Lauderdale K-8 will be providing the musical entertainment and the 



Grand Marshall of the city parade will be Calvin Hughes, from Channel 10 news, who will speak at the 

tree lighting ceremony as well the Mayor. City Manager Bhatty noted that Off Lease will be providing 

the convertible vehicles for the Commission to ride during the parade.  
 

 Saturday, December 8 – Tamarac North Lauderdale Chamber of Commerce Holiday 

Gala – Polish American Club – 700 pm - 12 midnight 

City Manager Bhatty advised the Commission will be attending the Gala after the tree lighting 

ceremony. She stated that there will be nine attendees at the Gala which includes the Commission and 

their spouses. She also stated the City Commission originally approved a table for eight at the cost of 

$400. An additional ticket will be purchased in the amount of $50, for another seat. She noted that Peter 

Mason, with the North Lauderdale/ Tamarac Chambers of Commerce provided tickets to accommodate 

the attendance of the City Manager, Community Development Director Tammy Reed Holguin, and the 

Assistant Community Development Director Katherine Randall at the Gala at no cost to the city. 

 

 Friday, December 14 – Employee Holiday Luncheon – Teen Center – 11:30 am – 1:30 

pm 

Ms. Bhatty advised the theme for this year’s holiday event is wacky ties. She encouraged everyone to 

come out to the event wearing their most ridiculous ties. 
 

 Saturday, December 15 – Grand Opening - NAPA Auto Parts at 1375 S. State Road 7 - 

8 am – 6 pm with ribbon cutting at 9:00 AM 

Ms. Bhatty advised that all the elected officials are invited to come to the ribbon cutting. 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 

 

Attorney Horowitz greeted the Commission and congratulated the elected officials. He extended 

congratulations on Attorney Goren’s behalf as well. He noted that this is the first swearing in ceremony 

that Attorney Goren has missed over 40 years due to unfortunate circumstances. He noted under the 

Broward County Ethics Code the newly elected officials are required to take 4 hours of ethics training 

within 120 days of taking office. He provided information on upcoming training sessions being offered 

by the Broward League of Cities and the Inspector General’s Office. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:03 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, City Clerk, Patricia Vancheri 

Transcribed by Deputy City Clerk, Elizabeth Garcia-Beckford 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

TO: Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager  

 

BY: Tammy Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director  

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: VAR- 18-01 Aldi Florida, LLC 

 1190 S State Rd 7, North Lauderdale 

  

Second Reading and Adoption:   Requesting a 5.5 foot side setback 

whereas a 10 foot side setback is required per Section 106-442 (4) of the 

City of North Lauderdale business district land development regulation 

code within a general business (B-3) zoning district.  

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 

 
Tonight staff is presenting a request for consideration of adoption on second reading for a 

setback variance to accommodate the construction of a new grocery store “ Aldi” to be located at 

1190 S SR 7.  The final site plan will be considered later tonight contingent upon approval of the 

variance.   

 

Background: 

PV Nola currently owns the property located at 1190 S SR 7 and they are proposing to build a 

22, 277 square feet building to house a new Aldi grocery store. The property owner authorized 

their tenant, Aldi Florida, LLC to request a variance for the side setback on the north end of the 

property. 

 

The applicant is requesting a 5.5 foot side setback whereas a 10 foot side setback is required by 

Section 106-442 (4). The request is outlined in the table below: 

 

 

TYPE OF 

VARIANCE 

CODE 

REQUIREMENTS 

PROPOSED VARIANCE 

REQUESTED 

Section 

106-442(4) 

Side 

Setbacks 

10 ft side property 

setback 

5.5 ft side 

property setback 

4.5ft 

encroachment 

into side 

setback 

 

As you heard back in February 2016, PV Nola purchased the subject property located at 1198 S. 

SR 7 and 1190 S. SR 7, a combination of two formerly individually-owned lots. Miami Subs and 



Dandy Wheels were located on these lots.  Both were demolished.  PV Nola redeveloped the 

southern lots into the Circle K and they are now proposing to construct Aldi grocery store on the 

remainder of the property.  In support of their variance request, the applicant claims that 

development of the first phase of the project impacted the size of the remaining parcel making it 

difficult to meet all the Code requirements for the construction of the Aldi.  They cited the 

creation of shared access by both businesses on to SR 7/441, improved site circulation, the 

accommodation of required landscaping, the requirement of sufficient on-site parking and 

improved accessibility for emergency vehicles as justification for a variance to the required 

building side setback. Furthermore the applicant has stressed that the variance is not injurious to 

the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.   

 

PV Nola purchased a small strip of land from Phoenix Land Investments, the property owner to 

their north where Palm Collision operates, in order to expand their lot. This purchase eliminated 

some parking and the landscape buffer for Palm Collision.  Staff determined that Palm Collision 

still had adequate parking for their business based on the information provided prior to purchase.  

Staff directed the applicant to work with this adjacent property owner, also a commercial use, to 

insure compatibility and to minimize the impact on the existing business.  Phoenix/Palm 

Collision provided the attached letter supporting the project and the associated variance.  They 

requested that a 6 foot concrete wall be built from the eastern end of the property on their 

southern boundary with the western end being a security chain link fence for visibility purposes.   

Phoenix agrees to maintain the wall and fence in the future.   

 

ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

Section 106-442 (4) of the City Code of Ordinances requires a 10 foot wide side setback 

between the property line and the building. PV Nola purchased the property as part of a 

larger development. The southern end of the property has been developed (Circle K) and they 

now intend to build a grocery store on the north. The 5.5 foot side setback will be used for 

landscape buffer purposes. 

 

Per the guidelines and criteria contained in Section 106-79 of the City Code, a variance shall 

not be granted unless the City’s governing body determines the following: 

1. That special circumstances exist affecting the land involved preventing the 

reasonable use of such land. 

2. That the circumstances, which cause the hardship, are peculiar to the property, 

such that they clearly constitute marked exceptions to other properties in the 

district. 

3. That the variance is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable 

use of the property and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 

detrimental to the public welfare. 

 

The applicant has provided the following justification for each of the above criteria:  

 

 The site for the construction of the Aldi is part of a larger land purchase 

and development that was first used to construct the Circle K.  



 Shared access and improved circulation is being provided for both 

developments 

 Moving the building footprint to accommodate the north side setback 

would further impact the parking, landscaping and existing trees 

 The northern property boundary in question is located next to a 

commercial property and accommodations have been made to buffer their 

property with the construction of a concrete wall on Phoenix side and 

landscaping on Aldi’s side.  

 The minimum variance is being requested to accommodate the proposed 

new building.     

 

The Planning and Zoning Board met and heard this item on Wednesday, November 7, 2018. The 

Board unanimously (4-0) approved both the variance item and site plan. Staff recommended 

adding variance condition item number 4 at the Planning and Zoning Board hearing. The Board 

approved this item with the additional condition to make the variance approval tied to the Aldi 

application and future use of the building once constructed. The applicant agreed to all four 

conditions. 

 

The Commission approved the variance on first reading on November 13, 2018 unanimously, 

subject to the four conditions listed below. Tonight we are presenting the item for consideration 

of adoption on second reading. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

If the City Commission concurs with this request, a motion is in order to approve the attached 

Ordinance on second reading granting the variance subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. That all applicable approvals by the City, County, State and other regulatory 

agencies be provided to the City of North Lauderdale prior to the issuance of 

permits. 

2. That a final traffic analysis be submitted prior to consideration by City 

Commission. 

3. That the letter from the adjacent property owners to the City supporting the 

development and the variance and requesting a wall/fence be constructed by the 

applicant on the southern border of Phoenix’s property and that Phoenix agrees to 

maintain the wall/fence be made part of the record.   

4. That the variance is tied to the Aldi application and future use of the building 

once constructed.   

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND GRANTING 

A VARIANCE FROM THE NORTH LAUDERDALE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, SECTION 106-442 (4) REGARDING THE 

REQUIRED 10 FOOT SIDE SETBACK; PROVIDING FOR 

STIPULATIONS AND CONDITIONS; PROVIDING THAT 

PROVISIONS NOT VARIED BY THIS ORDINANCE 

REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; PROVIDING 

FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Section 106-442 (4) of the City Code requires a minimum 10 foot side setback 

between the property line and the building; and  

 

WHEREAS, Thomas Engineering Inc., on behalf of Aldi Florida LLC , has applied for a variance 

to allow a 5.5 foot side setback where a 10 foot side setback is required; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board recommended consideration of approval of said 

variance request on November 7,
 
2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission is desirous of granting the requested variance from the 

requirements of the afore cited Ordinance and associated Zoning Regulations and/or applicable 

provisions thereof to said legal titleholder(s) as they apply to the property in question. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

 

Section 1: That pursuant to an application properly filed for a variance from the requirement 

of, Section 106-442 (4) of the North Lauderdale Code, variance is and the same are hereby granted 

from the requirement for the project located at 1190 South State Road 7, North Lauderdale, 

Florida. 

 

Section 2: That the variance is hereby granted to insure to the benefit of the present and future 

titleholder(s) to said property. 

 

Section 3: That all other requirements of the North Lauderdale Code of Ordinances and 

associated zoning regulations are not otherwise varied by the terms of this Ordinance and shall be 

in full force and effect and fully applicable to the property.  

 

Section 4: That all applicable approvals by the City, County, State and other regulatory 

agencies are provided to the City of North Lauderdale prior to the issuance of permits and that 



the applicant meets all conditions set forth by said regulatory agencies, including but not limited 

to the City engineer and Broward County Traffic Engineering Department.  

 

Section 5: That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of Resolutions, in 

conflict herewith be and the same are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section 6: That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

 

PASSED on first reading by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida, 

this 13 day of November, 2018. 

 

 

 PASSED on second reading by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, 

Florida, this ________day of  December, 2018. 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY SAMUEL S. GOREN 

 

      _________________________________ 

      ANA M. ZIADE, MAYOR  

 

      _________________________________ 

      SAMSON BORGELIN, VICE MAYOR  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

PATRICIA VANCHERI, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 



5.5 foot side 

setback being 

requested. 



 
 



 
 



 





 
 



 

 

Typical Wall Detail Section: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.5 foot side 

setback being 

requested. 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Commission   

 

FROM:  Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

BY:   Tammy Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

 

DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

LOCATION:  1190 S. SR 7 - Folio No. 494206160010 

 

SUBJECT:  Site Plan SPR 18-07 

   Aldi Grocery Store  

Final Site Plan approval to construct a grocery store in a General 

Business (B-3) zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Aldi Florida, LLC 

 

 
Tonight we are presenting the final site plan for Aldi Florida, LLC for Commission’s 

consideration of approval.   Approval is contingent upon the approval of the variance that was 

also heard tonight.  The preliminary site plan was approved by the Commission on November 

13, 2018.  As you may recall, the applicant is proposing to build a new 22,227 square foot 

grocery store. The store will occupy a currently undeveloped 1.83 acre lot that is directly 

abutting the recently developed Circle K to the north. The specific extent of the proposed site 

plan is detailed in Attachment A and is made a part of this report.    

  

Background: 

Aldi is expanding their operations in South Florida.  The North Lauderdale location will be the 

most current store prototype building. The store will employ 15-25 people in a variety of jobs 

and Aldi has stated that they will make every effort to hire locally. Wine and beer will be sold for 

off-site consumption however, no liquor will be sold. The hours of operation for the grocery 

store are Monday through Saturday 9 AM till 9 PM and Sunday 9 am – 8 pm.  

 

The proposed use of the parcel is consistent with the Master Business List that allows grocery 

stores in B-2 and B-3 zoning districts. Given the limited vacant, commercial space within the 

City, staff always encourages developers to consider a diversification of uses. This project 

provides a new grocery store which addresses some of the need expressed by the Community for 

more food options.  

 

The City’s professional planners reviewed the site plan and verified that the site meets City Code 

parking requirements based on the proposed retail use by providing 88 spaces including 4 ADA 

spaces where according to Section 106-223 (a)(20) of the City Code of Ordinances 85 parking 

spaces including ADA spaces are required. All parking spaces are provided on site.  



A variance is required for the side setback on the north side of the building.  There is a 5.5 foot 

setback provided from the columns protruding from the wall where 10 feet are required.  There is 

a 6.17 foot setback from the flat portions of the wall as depicted in the attached diagram.  All 

other required building setbacks are met.  The variance was heard first this evening and the 

approval of the final site plan is contingent upon the variance approval on second reading. The 

applicant has communicated with the adjacent property owner to the north who has provided a 

letter of authorization and is expected to provide a maintenance agreement regarding the 

completion of the development. 

 

There is no direct access to the site from State Road 7/441 on the west or SW 12
th

 Street on the 

south.  The entrance to this site from SR 7/441 is a shared access with the Circle K.  As part of 

the approval for this development, a traffic analysis was requested.   Although it is anticipated 

that the trip generation will not affect SR 7/441, the right turn queuing from SW 12
th

 street to 

access 441 would require a traffic study. The traffic analysis was received on November 26, 

2018. The conclusion from the applicant’s traffic engineer was that the roadway capacity is 

available to support the site; therefore, concurrency is met for the project and that all turn-lanes 

entering and exiting the site are projected to be adequate; therefore, access to the site is 

acceptable.   The report was forwarded to the City’s consulting traffic engineer for review and 

verification that the approved methodology was used and the conclusions are accurate.  At the 

time of this writing, our consultant had not yet completed his review. 

 

In an effort to build a project consistent with the City’s plan for the SR 7/ 441 Redevelopment 

Overlay District; staff requested that the applicant include architectural features and a color 

palette to match or at a minimum complement the Circle K and other buildings to provide a 

cohesive look for the development. The applicant has met this request as demonstrated in the 

attached color rendering.  

 

The Development Review Committee met on October 12th, 2018 for a formal review.  After 

considerable review and discussion, the Committee recommended approval of the site plan to the 

Planning and Zoning Board with direction to the applicant to work with the staff to finalize the 

site plan.  

 

The Planning and Zoning Board met and heard this item on Wednesday, November 7, 2018. The 

Board unanimously (4-0) approved both the variance item and site plan, which are contingent 

upon each other. 

 

The City Commission approved the preliminary site plan unanimously on November 13, 2018. 

 

Tonight we are presenting the item for consideration of final site plan approval.  Administration 

is in agreement with the Planning & Zoning Board’s recommendation of approval with the 

eleven conditions listed below.  

 

 

 

 

 



RECOMMENDATION: 

 

If the City Commission concurs with the applicant’s request and the recommendation of the 

Administration and Planning and Zoning Board, a motion is in order to approve the final site 

plan subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall comply with all applicable City Codes and Florida Building Codes. 

2. All terms, conditions and provisions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Board, City 

Commission, DRC and Staff including all life, health and safety Codes pertaining to this 

development shall be met prior to the issuance of building permits. 

3. The DRC, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission reserve the right to impose 

any additional requirements deemed necessary during subsequent approval reviews. 

4. Copies of all applicable permits and approvals by other regulatory agencies shall be 

provided to the City prior to issuance of building permits. 

5. All conditions required by Code and/or set forth by the City engineer shall be met. 

6. In the event that any problems arise, as a result of the operation of this establishment, 

such as noise, parking, traffic, and/or other nuisances, the applicant shall make all 

improvements required to mitigate these nuisances so as not to negatively impact 

adjacent areas. 

7. The applicant shall comply with all provisions contained in Chapter 102 “Vegetation” of 

the City Code and shall submit detailed landscaping plans for landscaping permit. 

8. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the applicant shall provide a written verification 

that all County impact fees associated with this project have been paid. 

9. Prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy by the City Building Department, 

the applicant shall pay all applicable assessment and impact fees to the City. 

10. If necessary, proper easements will be dedicated to the City of North Lauderdale. 

11. The applicant is to provide letter of authorization and maintenance agreement from the 

property owner to the North regarding the completion of the development. (Provided 

October 31, 2018) 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Commission  

 

FROM:  Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager  

 

BY:   Tammy L. Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director  

 

DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT:  SEU 18-05 Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II  

North side of Bailey Road west of existing Star of David facility at 

7701 Bailey Road. (Original SEU 99-01 and SEU 04-13). 

 

Special Exception Use (SEU) Permit for Cemetery Use in a 

Community Facility (CF) Zoning District. 

 

APPLICANT: Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc.  

 
BACKGROUND  

 

Star of David Memorial Gardens, owned by the applicant, is an existing cemetery. In 

Accordance with Section 106-417, of the City Zoning Code of Ordinances, cemeteries and 

mausoleums require a special exception use permit when located in a Community Facilities 

Zoning District.  

 

The original SEU (SEU 99-01) was approved in 1999, but due to lack of permit activity after the 

construction of the first phase of the project the special exception use permit expired.  A new 

SEU was approved in 2005 (SEU 04-13) for the construction of the mausoleum and office 

building.  These buildings are built now and that SEU is expired. They are now constructing a 

storage and maintenance building on the proposed third phase of the site.  The conditions and 

circumstances for approval of the SEU have not changed, however, because the last SEU has 

expired, it is necessary to approve an SEU with same conditions but a new number. 

Staff has reviewed the proposed request in light of the guidelines and criteria contained in 

section 106-159 of the City Code, and determined that the construction of a maintenance and 

storage building associated with an existing cemetery and mausoleum is not likely to create an 

unreasonable disruption to the area. It also does not involve an undesired increase or intensity of 

development, and should not have a negative effect on the community for any other identifiable 

reasons. The proposed use does not create any additional impact upon the capacity of utilities, or 

public services and confirms with the goals, objectives and policies and land uses established by 

the City’s code of ordinances.  

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

If the City Commission concurs with this request, a motion is in order to approve the special 

exception use permit with a new number and subject to the following conditions which are 

consistent with the previous two SEU’s: 

 

1. The applicant shall comply with applicable City Codes and Florida Building Codes. 

2. All terms, conditions and provisions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Board through 

previous consideration of SEU’s, City Commission, DRC and Staff including all life, 

health and safety Codes pertaining to this development shall be met prior to the issuance 

of building permits. 

3. The DRC, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission reserve the right to impose 

any additional requirements deemed necessary during subsequent approval reviews. 

4. Copies of all applicable permits and approvals by other regulatory agencies shall be 

provided to the City prior to issuance of building permits. 

5. All conditions required by Code and/or set forth by the City engineer shall be met. 

6. In the event that any problems arise, as a result of the operation of this establishment, 

such as noise, parking, traffic, and/or other nuisances, the applicant shall make all 

improvements required to mitigate these nuisances so as not to negatively impact 

adjacent areas. 

7. The approval is contingent upon the site plan approval that is being reviewed concurrent 

to this request.   

 

 

 

 

 









 



 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM:  Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

BY:   Tammy L. Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

 

DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT:  Site Plan SPR 18-06 (Amending original site plan 95-01) 

Site plan amendment approval to build 5,000 square foot maintenance 

building in a Community Facilities (CF) zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc.  

Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II  - 7801 Bailey Road 

 
The applicant, Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc. is proposing to construct a 5,000 square 

foot maintenance building and gravel access road located at Star of David Broward Memorial 

Gardens II- 7801 Bailey Road.  The addition of this pre-fabricated maintenance building will 

allow the facility to centralize all their maintenance services and supplies in one location.  The 

specific extent of the anticipated use is explained in Attachment A, and made a part of this 

report.   

 

The proposed maintenance building will be located in the northwest corner of the property.  It 

will replace one of the previously approved two-story, 5,293 square foot mausoleums (Building 

13) which will not be built.  Staff has reviewed the proposed site plan and has determined that no 

additional parking is required for the new maintenance building.  The development currently has 

40 parking spaces where 36 are required including the new storage building and there have been 

no reports of parking issues.  In conjunction with this request for site plan approval, the proposed 

gravel access road will only be limited to maintenance equipment and funeral home personnel 

only. The remainder of Phase III is unchanged as shown in the originally approved site plan (95-

01) approved by the Commission.  Amendments to Commission approved site plans are not 

required to be heard by the Planning & Zoning Board.  The Commission has the authority to 

amend site plans previously approved by them.     

 

On March 20, 2018 the Development Review Committee, met for a pre-application meeting and 

again after review of submitted plans on November 2
nd

, 2018. After discussion by the 

Committee, approval of the site plan amendment was recommended to be considered by the City 

Commission. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

City Administration recommends approval of the site plan amendment subject to the following 

conditions: 



 

1. The applicant shall comply with applicable City Codes and Florida Building Codes. 

 

2. All terms, conditions and provisions imposed originally by the Planning and Zoning 

Board, City Commission, DRC and Staff including all life, health and safety Codes 

pertaining to this development shall be met prior to the issuance of building permits. 

 

3. The DRC, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission reserve the right to 

impose any additional requirements deemed necessary during subsequent approval 

reviews. 

 

4. Copies of all applicable permits and approvals by other regulatory agencies shall be 

provided to the City prior to issuance of building permits. 

 

5. All conditions set forth by the City engineer shall be met. 

 

6. In the event that any problems arise, as a result of the operation of this establishment, 

such as noise, parking, traffic, and/or other nuisances, the applicant shall make all 

improvements required to mitigate these nuisances so as not to negatively impact 

adjacent Community Facility/residential areas. 

 

If the City Commission concurs with the applicant’s request, the following motion is in 

order: 

 

Motion: 

 

“Motion to approve the final site plan amendment (18-06) to build a 5000 square foot 

maintenance building and access road at Star of David Broward Memorial Gardens II- 7801 

Bailey Road located in a Community Facility (CF) zoning district subject to the conditions 

outlined in staff’s memorandum.” 

 





 

 
 







 
 



 

 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM:  Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager  

 

BY:   Tammy L. Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

 

DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT:  SPR 18-03        Rock Island Villas  

7400 SW 10th Ct 

Folio #: 4941-02-02-0130 

 

Preliminary site plan approval to construct 14 attached units (3 

buildings) in a Residential Multi-Family Medium Density (RM-10) 

zoning district. 

 

APPLICANT: Ragnar Magnusson, Rock Island Partners, LLC. 

 
Rock Island Partners, LLC is proposing to build 14 rental units on 1.42 acres of land.  The City’s 

zoning designation for this parcel is RM-10, which permits up to 10 units per gross acre. This is 

consistent with the City’s land use plan that designates the property as Residential Medium 

Density (R-MD 10-16 du/a). This project seeks to improve an undeveloped parcel and add 

market rate rental housing to North Lauderdale’s housing stock.   

 

The proposed dwellings are within three individual single story buildings.  Each unit has two 

bedrooms and two full bathrooms with an open concept floor plan.  The development boasts a 

striking metal roof and architectural features similar to the single family character of the area. 

The site meets all parking requirements by providing 33 spaces in the form of two per unit and 

then 5 visitor spaces. There is one centralized mail cabinet and a dumpster is included on site for 

the residents’ convenience. The property will be landscaped to enhance the building features and 

two main entry signs will be constructed at the entrance of the property. All accessways are 

located off SW 10 Court.  The existing wood and chain link fences will provide a buffer to all 

sides of the property. The developer will manage the rental properties once constructed. 

 

The Development Review Committee met twice, once on August 23, 2018, and on October 22, 

2018. After the second review and discussion, staff recommended approval of the site plan to the 

Planning and Zoning Board subject to the conditions listed below.     

 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on December 5
th

, 2018 and after some public input, 

discussion and motion voted to approve the item with the added condition #13. This addressed 

concerns from members of the public who spoke at the hearing regarding the condition of the 

existing fencing and tree overgrowth due to the property being vacant for quite some time.       



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

If the City Commission concurs with the Planning and Zoning Board and City staff’s 

recommendation of approval then a motion is in order for approval by the City Commission of 

the preliminary site plan subject to the following conditions with direction for administration and 

the applicant to continue work together to finalize the site plan: 

 

1. The applicant shall comply with applicable City Codes and Florida Building Codes. 

2. All terms, conditions and provisions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Board, City 

Commission, DRC and Staff including all life, health and safety Codes pertaining to this 

development shall be met prior to the issuance of building permits. 

3. The DRC, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission reserve the right to impose 

any additional requirements deemed necessary during subsequent approval reviews. 

4. Copies of all applicable permits and approvals by other regulatory agencies shall be 

provided to the City prior to issuance of building permits. 

5. All conditions required by Code and/or set forth by the City engineer shall be met. 

6. In the event that any problems arise, as a result of the operation of this establishment, 

such as noise, parking, traffic, and/or other nuisances, the applicant shall make all 

improvements required to mitigate these nuisances so as not to negatively impact 

adjacent areas. 

7. Photometric Plan approval by staff is required. 

8. The applicant shall comply with all provisions contained in Chapter 102 “Vegetation” of 

the City Code and shall submit detailed landscaping plans for landscaping permit. 

9. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the applicant shall provide a written verification 

that all County impact fees associated with this project have been paid. 

10. Prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy by the City Building Department, 

the applicant shall pay all applicable assessment and impact fees to the City. 

11. If necessary, proper easements will be dedicated to the City of North Lauderdale. 

12. Park and Recreation Impact Fees shall be paid pursuant to Section 98-82 of the City 

Code, prior to issuance of any building permits. 

13. That the existing fence be repaired where needed around the property boundary and trees 

that need to be cleared of the fence are trimmed, relocated or removed as per direction 

from City landscape consultant. Applicant is to revise the landscape plan as needed.   

 

 



 

 



 
 

 



 



 

 

 

 

CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

BY:  Tammy Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Second Reading and Adoption: 

  Proposed Fee Schedule Revision (Appendix F) 

Sec. 3 Building Permit and Related Fees (1) General e. Registration Fees 

 
Tonight, we are presenting an Ordinance for consideration of adoption on second reading to amend 

the City’s fee schedule related to building permits.  Per Florida Statute, the City can no longer 

charge a fee for contractors registering to do business in our City.   The Commission adopted the 

item on first reading on November 13, 2018.  

 

Background: 

House Bill 535 eliminated the ability of municipalities to assess a fee associated with providing 

proof of licensure; recording or filing a license; providing, recording or filing evidence of workers’ 

compensation insurance coverage. These are all documents required for contractors to register to 

work within our municipality.  The City currently charges $10.00 to process these documents and 

register the contractor within the MUNIS system.  Florida Statute 553.80 (7) (d) prohibits the 

charging of fees related to the registration process. 

 

We are presenting the attached Ordinance amendment for second reading and adoption this evening 

to amend “Appendix F” to eliminate the $10 cost of the contractor registration.  We will continue to 

register contractors as required.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The City Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and adoption on second 

reading of the proposed Ordinance to amend “Appendix F” of the City’s Code of Ordinances 

eliminating the cost for contractor registrations per Florida Statute 553.80 (7) (d).  

  



 

ORDINANCE NO.  _____________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX F, OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE CODE OF ORDINANCES, ENTITLED 

"FEES", BY AMENDING ARTICLE I, ENTITLED, "COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE", SECTION 3 ENTITLED “BUILDING 

PERMITS AND RELATED FEES” TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

ELIMINATION OF THE FEE FOR CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION;  

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, all contractors proposing to work within the municipal boundaries are 

required by City Code to submit documentation of licensure and workers’ compensation; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City currently charges a minimal fee of $10 for contractors to register with 

the appropriate documentation to perform work with the City boundaries; and 

 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute 553.80 (7)(d) now eliminates the ability of municipalities to  

assess a fee associated with providing proof of licensure; recording or filing a license; providing, 

recording or filing evidence of workers’ compensation insurance coverage. and  

 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the Florida Statutes it is necessary for the City to 

amend its fee schedule to eliminate the minimal fee for contractor registration; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale finds that such revision 

to the other charges and fees to accommodate the additional cost of providing the service are in the 

best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens and residents of the City of North 

Lauderdale. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, THAT: 
 

 Section  1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 

 Section 2. Appendix F of the Code of Ordinances, entitled "Fees", Article I, entitled, 

"Community Development Fee Schedule”, Sec. 3 Building Permit and Related Fees, General, e. 

Registration fee, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of North Lauderdale, be and the same is 

hereby amended as provided in Exhibit "A" to this Ordinance, which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 



 Section 3. Codification.   It is the intention of the City Commission of the City of 

North Lauderdale that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida.  

 

 Section 4. Severability. If any clause, section or other part of this Ordinance shall be 

held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional 

or invalid part shall be considered as eliminated and in no way affecting the validity of the other 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 Section 5. Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

 Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption. 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, ON THE FIRST READING, THE ______ DAY OF 

NOVEMBER, 2018. 

 

 PASSED ADOPTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, ON THE SECOND AND FINAL READING, THIS ______ 

DAY OF _____________________, 2018. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      ANA M. ZIADE, MAYOR 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      SAMSON BORGELIN, VICE MAYOR 

 

 

       

ATTEST:      

 

________________________________ 

PATRICIA VANCHERI, CITY CLERK 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

SAMUEL S. GOREN  

CITY ATTORNEY  

 



 



Exhibit A 

 

Appendix F –Fees 

 

*** 

ARTICLE I. – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE  

*** 

Sec. 3 Building Permit and Related Fees  

(1) General  

*** 

e. Registration fee, notarized registration form and copies of all updated licenses and certificates of 

liability and workers’ compensation must accompany registration form ……..10.00 

Added  

 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

BY:  Mitch Williams, Chief Information Technology Officer 

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Microsoft Enterprise Software Product License Purchases 

 
As you know, the software programs used by the City to run it’s operations have certain 

licensing requirements that need to be purchased every year.  These licenses are required for the 

operating systems and applications used by employees on Production and Disaster Recovery 

equipment and applications.  Therefore, staff is requesting the purchase of these licenses to 

continue the City’s Information Technology operations.   

 

After consulting with Microsoft and Software House International, (a Florida State approved 

software vendor, contract # 4323000-15-2), staff has determined that the following product 

licenses and quantities should be purchased to meet City’s licensing requirements for this fiscal 

year at the costs listed below: 

 

Microsoft Product Licenses Quantity Cost 

OfficeProPlus ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm 110 $ 10,138.70 

EntCAL ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm UsrCAL wSrvcs 150 $ 16,267.50 

WINENT ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm 110 $ 4,470.40 

Microsoft Exchange Server 2 $ 227.40 

ExchgSvrEnt ALNG SA MVL 2 $ 1,300.62 

SysCtrStdCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic 8 $ 142.32 

WinSvrDCCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic 48 $ 5,933.76 

LyncSvr ALNG SA MVL 1 $ 585.69 

SQLSvrStd ALNG SA MVL 5 $ 719.85 

Microsoft SQL Server - software assurance 50 $ 1,677.00 

Microsoft(R) Win Rmt Dsktp Svcs CAL All Lng 20 $ 425.40 

SfBSvrPlusCAL ALNG SA MVL UsrCAL 100 $ 2,290.00 

TOTAL  $ 44,178.64 

 

Please be advised that in April of 2013 the City purchased a 6 month ‘true-up’ Enterprise 

Software License Agreement (EA) in order for the City to be able to align and consolidate all 

Microsoft Software Licenses to a three year contract.  In December of 2016, the City 

Commission approved to renew the Software License Agreement contract with Microsoft 

Corporation for an additional three years with payment obligations in December of 2016, 2017, 

and 2018 respectively to Software House International. 

 



Staff is requesting funding to meet the December 2018 obligation in an amount not to exceed 

$44,178.64.00. The software licensing costs are budgeted in FY 2019 Information Technology 

Fund.  Please be advised that December 2018 licensing cost is based on projected use for FY 

2019. Future licensing cost may vary in December 2019. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The City Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and approval of the attached 

Resolution authorizing payment for Microsoft Enterprise Software Licenses from Software 

House International at a cost not to exceed $44,178.64 for the period starting December 2018- 

November 30, 2019.   



 

RESOLUTION NO._____________________ 
 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE 

EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF MICROSOFT 

ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE LICENSES FROM SOFTWARE HOUSE 

INTERNATIONAL AS LISTED IN SECTION ONE OF THIS 

RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$44,178.64 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

 

 

Section 1: That the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale does hereby authorize 

payment of the Microsoft License fees in the amount not to exceed $44,178.64 for the period 

starting December 2018 - November 30, 2019. 

 

Microsoft Product Licenses Quantity Cost 

OfficeProPlus ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm 110 $ 10,138.70 

EntCAL ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm UsrCAL wSrvcs 150 $ 16,267.50 

WINENT ALNG SA MVL Pltfrm 110 $ 4,470.40 

Microsoft Exchange Server 2 $ 227.40 

ExchgSvrEnt ALNG SA MVL 2 $ 1,300.62 

SysCtrStdCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic 8 $ 142.32 

WinSvrDCCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic 48 $ 5,933.76 

LyncSvr ALNG SA MVL 1 $ 585.69 

SQLSvrStd ALNG SA MVL 5 $ 719.85 

Microsoft SQL Server - software assurance 50 $ 1,677.00 

Microsoft(R) Win Rmt Dsktp Svcs CAL All Lng 20 $ 425.40 

SfBSvrPlusCAL ALNG SA MVL UsrCAL 100 $ 2,290.00 

TOTAL  $ 44,178.64 

 

 

Section 2: That the funds for said purchases, not to exceed $44,178.64, are budgeted in the 

FY 2019 IT Fund. 

 

Section 3: That the City intends to purchase these licenses through Software House 

International, a Florida State approved software vendor, contract # 4323000-15-2. 

 

Section 4: That this resolution be shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 



PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale this 11
th

 day 

of December, 2018. 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

_________________________________  ________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY SAMUEL S. GOREN  MAYOR ANA M. ZIADE 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________  ________________________________ 

CITY CLERK PATRICIA VANCHERI  VICE MAYOR SAMSON BORGELIN 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Commission 
 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 
 

BY:  Mitch Williams, Chief Information Technology Officer 

  Ann-Marie Fraser, Accounting & Purchasing Coordinator 
 

DATE: December 11, 2018 
 

SUBJECT: Copier Lease with Acordis International Corp Technology and Solutions 

 
 

The City currently leases seven (7) multifunction copiers from SHARP Business Systems, which 

will expire December 2018.  After the review of several multifunction copier quotes and 

contracts with the Finance department, Acordis International Corp Technology and Solutions has 

submitted a quote for the lowest yearly expenditure. The quoted amount below includes delivery 

& installation, monthly lease of equipment and quarterly prints. All parts, labor, service calls, 

scheduled preventative maintenance and lifetime training for end-users are included in the lease. 

Toner and supplies are also included, except for paper and staples. 

  

      TOP 3 BIDDERS  YEARLY  

EXPENSE 

3 YEAR 

AGREEMENT 

1. Acordis International Corp Technology and 

Solutions 

$13,667.16 $41,001.48 

2. Toshiba $16,368.00 $49,104.00 

3. RICOH $17,416.44 $52,249.32 

 

A thorough usage assessment was conducted by the Information Technology (IT) department to 

determine the number of copiers and their specifications needed to run City operations.  The 

result of the assessment confirms that the proposed Xerox Multifunction copiers meet or exceed 

the City’s monthly copy/print needs while reducing multifunction copier service costs.   

 

The prices offered on the submitted quote to the City is a piggy-back off the City of Miramar 

IFB No. 17-020, Multi-Function Copier Equipment, awarded to Acordis International Corp 

Technology and Solutions. 

 

Funding for the new lease agreement for the above referenced multifunction copiers has been 

budgeted in the FY2019 adopted budget. The multifunction copier used in Utility Billing will be 

funded by US Water. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The City Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and approval of the attached 

resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an acceptable agreement by and between 

the City Of North Lauderdale and Acordis International Corp Technology & Solutions for the 

lease of (4) Xerox Versalink C7030; (2) Xerox Altalink C8055 AND (1) Xerox Versalink B8025 



multifunction copiers at an annual amount of $13,667.16 for the lease and maintenance of 

equipment.  In addition, City Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and 

approval for $5,000 in contingency funds to be available for additional expenses such as excess 

copies. 

 





RESOLUTION NO.______________________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN ACCEPTABLE AGREEMENT BY 

AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE AND ACORDIS 

INTERNATIONAL CORP TECHNOLOGY & SOLUTIONS FOR THE 

LEASE OF (4) XEROX VERSALINK C7030; (2) XEROX ALTALINK 

C8055 AND (1) XEROX VERSALINK B8025 MULTIFUNCTION 

COPIERS AT AN ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $13,667.16 FOR THE LEASE 

AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT; AND DIRECTING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO TAKE ALL STEPS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE 

INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

 

Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take all steps 

necessary to execute a 36-month lease agreement for four Xerox VersaLink C7030 multifunction 

copiers; two Xerox AltaLink C8055 multifunction copiers; and one Xerox VersaLink B8025 

multifunction copier for an average annual cost not to exceed $13,667.16 by and between the 

City of North Lauderdale and Acordis International Corp Technology and Solutions.  

 

Section 2: That the funds for said leases and maintenance are provided from the FY 2019 

adopted budget.  

 

Section 3: That $5,000.00 of contingency funds is available for unforeseen expenses. 

 

Section 4: That this resolution be shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale this 11
th

 

day of December, 2018. 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

CITY ATTONEY SAMUAL S. GOREN        

       _______________________________ 

        MAYOR ANA M. ZIADE 

 

             

       ________________________________ 

       VICE MAYOR SAMSON BORGELIN 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

CITY CLERK PATRICIA VANCHERI 



FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Commission 

 

From:  Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

By:  Susan Nabors, Finance Director 

  George Krawczyk, Public Works/Utilities Director 

 

Date:  December 11, 2018 

 

Subject: Renewal of Water Plant Operation and Utility Billing Services Agreement with 

US Water Services Corporation 

 

 

Background: 

 

In August 2013, the City issued Bid #13-08-344 for Water Plant Operations and Utility Billing 

Services.  On October 29, 2013, Resolution #13-10-6005 was adopted by the Commission 

authorizing the City to enter into an agreement with US Water Services Corporation (“US Water”), 

the successful bidder for these services. 

 

An agreement between the City and US Water was executed and became effective on January 1, 

2014.  The contract was for an initial term of five (5) years, which expires December 31, 2018, and 

allows for one (1) five (5) year renewal.  The agreement allows for annual fee adjustments 

according to the annual Consumers Price Index – (CPI/U) for Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL area or 

4%, whichever is less. 

 

For the renewal period, the City proposed, and US Water agrees to maintain the current staffing 

levels, other terms of the contract and continue the annual adjustments of CPI-Miami-Ft. 

Lauderdale, or 4%, whichever is less.  The CPI change applicable to 2019 is 3.4%.  Therefore, the 

calendar year 2019 annual rates are based on 3.4% increase and will be as follows:    

 

 Water Plant Operations:  $896,962.16          Utility Billing Services:  $708,994.24 

 

Overall, the City has been very pleased with the Water Plant Operations provided by US Water.  

Over the past year, the City has worked closely with US Water staff towards making improvements 

in the Utility Billing Service area.  We expect these improvements to continue into the future and 

strive to provide a positive customer service experience for our utility customers. 

 

The Renewal Addendum is attached as Exhibit A. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

The Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and approval of the attached 

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the Renewal Addendum to the original 

agreement between the City of North Lauderdale and US Water Services Corporation, for water 

plant operations and utility billing services for a five year period beginning January 1, 2019.                                                                            



 

RESOLUTION NO.  _______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE RENEWAL ADDENDUM TO THE 

ORIGINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE AND US WATER SERVICES CORPORATION, FOR 

WATER PLANT OPERATIONS AND UTILITY BILLING SERVICES 

FOR A FIVE YEAR PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2019; 

RESPECTIVELY, PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
  

WHEREAS, Resolution #13-10-6005 dated October 29, 2013 authorized the execution of 

an agreement with US Water Services Corporation  based upon the terms and conditions outlined 

in the submittal to the RFP #13-08-344; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has contracted with US Water Services Corporation for the past 

five years to perform the City’s water plant operations and utility billing services; 

 

WHEREAS, the agreement between the City and US Water Services Corporation allows 

for one (1) five (5) year renewal;  

 

WHEREAS, US Water Services Corporation, has provided water plant operations and 

utility billing services in accordance with the terms of the agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is satisfied with the quality of services provided to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, a renewal of the agreement with US Water Services Corporation will 

provide for the necessary continuity required because of their knowledge and past experience 

with the City of North Lauderdale; and 

 

WHEREAS, available funds exist in the current budget for said purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida deems it to be 

in the best interests of the citizens and residents of the City of North Lauderdale to renew the 

agreement between the City of North Lauderdale, Florida and US Water Services Corporation, 

for five (5) years beginning January 1 ,2019. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

 

SECTION 1:  The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

 

SECTION 2:  The appropriate City officials are hereby authorized to execute the 

agreement between the City of North Lauderdale, Florida, and US Water Services Corporation. 

  



 

 

SECTION 3:  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.  

 

 SECTION 4:  If any clause, section, other part or application of this  Resolution 

is held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or 

application, it shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this 

Resolution. 

 

SECTION 5:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

passage and adoption.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, THIS 11th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2018. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

     ANA M. ZIADE, MAYOR 

 

_________________________ 

      SAMSON BORGELIN, VICE MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

PATRICIA VANCHERI, CITY CLERK 

 

 

Approved as to form. 

 

__________________________________ 

SAMUEL S. GOREN, CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

PUBLIC WORKS/UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

BY:  George Krawczyk, Public Works/Utilities Director 

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Interlocal Agreement with Cities of Pompano Beach, Margate, North 

Lauderdale, Coral Springs, and Coconut Creek for sharing the Cost of the 

Development of Bacteria Pollution Control Plan 

 
 

The City entered into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Broward County Environmental 

Protection and Growth Management Department (EPGMD) in 1996 to act as the lead agency in 

regards to the Nation Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program under permit 

number FLS000016-004. This program is designed to manage the stormwater system throughout 

the County with Pollution prevention activities. This program is part of the Federal Clean Water 

Act and is governed by the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) 

through a permit issued to Broward County with 26 local municipalities as co-permittees. Larger 

cities such as Fort Lauderdale and Hollywood have their own independent permits.  

 

Part of the compliance items for this NPDES permit cycle is to develop a bacteria pollution 

control plan in priority water bodies. The Cypress Creek Canal (C-14) has been designated as a 

priority water body by the EPA. Several municipalities discharge storm water into this water 

body. This proposed ILA with the City of Pompano Beach, City of Margate, City of North 

Lauderdale, City of Coral Springs, and City of Coconut Creek is for the development of the 

Bacteria Pollution Plan for the C-14 canal, to be conducted by Hydro Solutions, mandating 

testing of parameters in the C-14 canal which ends in Pompano per the issued NPDES permit. 

The City of North Lauderdale has direct connections to this waterway, along with other 

discharging cities mentioned above, and therefore this ILA is being proposed to evenly share the 

cost of preparing this Bacteria Pollution Control Plan.  

 

The one-time cost share for the City of North Lauderdale is $8,928.80 for the development of 

bacteria pollution plan as the five cities are splitting this cost evenly where each City pays their 

20% portion. The funding for these activities and the program is appropriated in the City’s 

Stormwater Fund. 

 

The Public Works/Utilities Department will work in good faith in the coordination and 

collaboration effort with the City of Pompano, who will be taking a lead on this project as Hydro 

Solution is one of their qualified vendors for this project, to accomplish the goal of this ILA to 

provide a Bacteria Pollution Control Plan as per NPDES requirements.  

 



RECOMMENDATION:  

 

The City Administration recommends City Commission’s consideration and approval of the 

attached Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to enter into a Interlocal made 

and entered into between the City of Pompano Beach, the City of Margate, the City of North 

Lauderdale, the City of Coral Springs, and the City of Coconut Creek for the sharing of the cost 

of the development of a bacteria pollution control plan for the C-14 canal. 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ___________________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER OR HER DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT MADE AND ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

POMPANO BEACH, THE CITY OF MARGATE, THE CITY OF NORTH 

LAUDERDALE, THE CITY OF CORAL SPRINGS, AND THE CITY OF 

COCONUT CREEK FOR THE SHARING OF THE COST OF THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF A BACTERIA POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN FOR 

THE C-14 CANAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

L1AUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

 

Section 1: That the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida authorizes the 

City Manager or her designee to enter into a ILA with City of Pompano Beach, the City of 

Margate, the City of Coral Springs, the City of North Lauderdale, and the City of Coconut Creek 

for the sharing of the cost of the development of a bacteria pollution control plan for the C-14 

canal. 

 

Section 2: That the Public Works/Utilities Department will participate in good faith in the 

collaboration effort as Pompano Beach is the lead agency in the plan.  

 

Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida, this 

11th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY SAMUEL S. GOREN 

       _______________________________ 

       MAYOR ANA M. ZIADE 

 

       _______________________________ 

       VICE MAYOR SAMSON BORGELIN 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

PATRICIA VANCHERI, CITY CLERK  



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 



CITY OF NORTH LAUDERDALE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: Ambreen Bhatty, City Manager 

 

By:  Tammy L. Reed-Holguin, Community Development Director 

  George Krawczyk, Public Works Director 

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution Supporting the Broward Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) W. Prospect Road Mobility Improvements Project to Enhance 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Connectivity Along County Right-of-Way 

 
Tonight we are requesting Commission’s approval of the attached Resolution supporting the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization’s (MPO) project to enhance bicycle and pedestrian 

connectivity along Prospect Road within County right-of-way.  This project will extend the 

sidewalk on the south side of Prospect Road and install bike lanes on both the north and south 

sides of Prospect Road from State Road 7 to approximately NW 36
th

 Terrace.  Robert Lopes, 

P.E., from the Florida Department of Transportation, is here tonight to give a brief presentation 

on the project.  The MPO is represented by Ricardo Gutierrez. 

  

BACKGROUND:  
The W. Prospect Road mobility improvements project was identified as part of the State Road 7 

Multimodal Improvements Corridor Study.  A prioritized list of projects was approved as part of that 

study by the Broward MPO Board on July 14, 2016.  The City Commission’s representative on the 

Board was very vocal about the need to extend the sidewalk on the south side of Prospect Road to 

provide connectivity to the businesses and bus stop on State Road 7 for the residents of the Village 

Mobile Home Park. The proposed project will accomplish that objective. 

 

The exact scope of the project and the design of the project are scheduled to begin October 2019.  

The intent is to construct 5 foot bike lanes on both the north and south side of Prospect Road in the 

County right-of-way and to extend the existing 6 foot sidewalk from approximately NW 36th Terrace 

to State Road 7 along the south side. (See exhibit “A’) They will also look into adding any missing 

segments of sidewalk on the north side of Prospect Road to at least connect to exiting bus stops. 

These sidewalks and bike lanes will meet all of the ADA requirements. Once these amenities are 

constructed by FDOT, they will be turned over the County for maintenance.  The County is 

requesting that the municipalities commit to the maintenance of any improvements within their 

jurisdiction.  The County will have to dedicate this right-of-way to the City for this purpose.  

 

There will be additional public input opportunities regarding the scope and design of the project in 

mid-2020. FDOT and MPO will come back before the Commission after that time.  The production 

of design documents is anticipated to begin in December 2021 and the project will be bid-out at the 

end of July 2022. 

 

 



Tonight, we are requesting approval of the attached Resolution supporting the Metropolitan 

Planning Organization’s (MPO) project to enhance bicycle and pedestrian connectivity along 

Prospect Road within County right-of-way and committing the City to the maintenance of the 

improvements once constructed. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The City Administration recommends Commission’s consideration and adoption of the attached 

resolution supporting the Metropolitan Planning Organization’s (MPO) project to enhance bicycle 

and pedestrian connectivity along Prospect Road within County right-of-way and committing the 

City to maintain such improvements once constructed. 

 

  



RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE 

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION’S PROJECT TO 

ENHANCE BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 

ALONG PROSPECT ROAD WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY, 

FROM SR-7/US-441 TO APPROXIMATELY NW 36th TERRACE; 

FURTHER EXPRESSING ITS INTENT TO TAKE OVER 

MAINTENANCE OF THESE BIKE/MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WITHIN THE COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation (hereinafter FDOT) 

is authorized to undertake a project identified as Financial Project # 437830-1-52-01, 

within City of North Lauderdale's geographical limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said project, FDOT agrees to provide bike/pedestrian 

improvements along Prospect Road from SR-7 to approximately NW 36th Terrace in the City 

of North Lauderdale; and 

 

WHEREAS, City of North Lauderdale desires to have installed the bike/pedestrian 

improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, City of North Lauderdale is willing to maintain the bike/pedestrian 

improvements within City right of way after installation; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of North Lauderdale to approve 

and authorize an agreement to establish the mutual rights and obligations of the City and 

FDOT with respect to installation and maintenance of the bike/pedestrian improvements 

pursuant to this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, this project is on the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) priority 

list; and 

 

WHEREAS, since this is an Off State Highway System Project, FDOT will not provide 

maintenance for the project segment after construction is completed.  A Maintenance Agreement 

will be required to establish the County as the maintaining agency for the segment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such authority, FDOT and City of North Lauderdale are 

desirous of having the FDOT construct mobility improvements more particularly described as 

Financial Project ID 429576-4-52-01, which involves constructing bike/pedestrian 

improvements along the project limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto mutually recognize the need for entering into an 

Agreement designating and setting forth the responsibilities of each party; and 

 



WHEREAS, The City Commission of The City of North Lauderdale by Resolution on 

the 11
th

 day of December, 2018, a copy of which is attached hereto and by this reference made a 

part hereof, desires to enter into this Agreement and authorizes its officers to do so; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY 

OF NORTH LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA THAT: 

 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and correct 

and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution upon adoption hereof. 

Section 2. City of North Lauderdale hereby requests FDOT to develop plans to construct a 

bike/mobility improvement along Prospect Road from SR-7 to approximately NW 36th 

Terrace, within City right of way to enhance bicycle and pedestrian connectivity. 

Section 3. It is the intent of City of North Lauderdale to take over the maintenance of the 

Prospect Road bike/pedestrian improvements along Prospect Road from SR-7 to approximately 

NW 36th Terrace. 

Section 4. The City Clerk is directed to provide a copy of this Resolution to FDOT. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED by the City Commission of the City of North Lauderdale, Florida, this 11th day of 

December, 2018. 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY SAMUEL S. GOREN 

 

       _________________________________ 

       MAYOR ANA M. ZIADE 

 

       _________________________________ 

       VICE MAYOR SAMSON BORGELIN 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

PATRICIA VANCHERI, CITY CLERK 



 

 





 

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM 

CITY CLERK’S DEPARTMENT 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Commission 

 

FROM: City Clerk Patricia Vancheri 

 

DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: Broward League of Cities Board of Directors Appointments 

 
 

The Broward League of Cities requests that each Member City appoints a Director, an Alternate 

Director and a Second Alternate Director to serve on the Board of Directors for the time period 

effective June 2018 through May 2019.   

 

Based on the results of the November 6, 2018 General Election, there needs to be new 

appointments to this Board. 

 

The slate of officers previously appointed was Mayor Jack Brady, as Director; Commissioner 

Graziose, as Alternate and Commissioner Wood, as Second Alternate.   

 

COMMISSION ACTION NEEDED:   

 

Select among your peers Commissioners to serve in the three positions cited above; fill in the 

names in the attached Resolution; read and adopt the Resolution with the names inserted. 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION 

APPOINTING A DIRECTOR, AN ALTERNATE DIRECTOR AND A 

SECOND ALTERNATE TO THE BROWARD LEAGUE OF CITIES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 2018 THROUGH 

MAY 2019; PROVIDING THAT A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION BE 

SENT TO MARY LOU TIGHE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 

BROWARD LEAGUE OF CITIES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Broward League of Cities has requested that each member city provide a 

Resolution naming, from among their peers a director, alternate director and second alternate 

director to serve on the League Board of Directors. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of North 

Lauderdale, Florida: 

 

Section 1. That ____________________________ be and the same is hereby selected to 

serve as a Director of the Broward League of Cities Board of Directors. 

 

Section 2. That ____________________________ be and the same is hereby selected to 

serve as an Alternate Director of the Broward League of Cities Board of Directors. 

 

Section 3. That ____________________________ be and the same is hereby selected to 

serve as a Second Alternate Director of the Broward League of Cities Board of Directors. 

 

Section 4: That the City Clerk shall provide an executed copy of this Resolution to Mary 

Lou Tighe, Executive Director, Broward League of Cities. 

 

Section 5: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the North Lauderdale City Commission this 11
th

 day of December, 

2018. 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________  _________________________________ 

SAMUEL S. GOREN CITY ATTORNEY  MAYOR ANA M. ZIADE 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________ _________________________________ 

CITY CLERK, PATRICIA VANCHERI  VICE MAYOR SAMSON BORGELIN 



 


	COMMISSION AGENDA 12-11-18
	COMMISSION MINUTES 11-13-18
	COMMISSION MINUTES  SPECIAL MEETING 11-27-18
	ORD - 2nd Rdg - VAR 18-01 Aldi
	MOT - SPR 18-07 Aldi  Final approval
	MOT - SEU 18-05 Star of David Renewal
	MOT - SPR 18-06 Star of David Site Plan Amendment
	MOT - SPR 18-03 Rock Island Villas prelim
	ORD - 2nd Rdg - registration fee deletion
	RESO - FY2019_MS Enterprise Software Licenses
	RESO - Xerox_Copier
	RESO - Renewal of US Water Contract
	RESO - Renewal of US Water Contract
	Contract Extension - CNL 2019 for 5 years

	RESO - Interlocal With Pompano Beach
	RESO - Supporting FDOT improvements on Prospect Road
	NL Household Hazardous Waste Collection Dates
	RESO - Appointing BLC Board of Directors December 2018

